
(NOTE:  The wording of all “Inquiries” submitted are displayed exactly as received.) 
 

100 West Washington Street, Room 320 | Hagerstown, MD 21740-4748 | P: 240.313.2330 | F: 240.313.2331 | Hearing Impaired: 7-1-1 

 
WWW.WASHCO-MD.NET 

    
 
 
 

 
COORDINATING COMMITTEE 

 
 

PUR-1308 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
REGARDING QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE / TECHNICAL 

PROPOSALS AND PRICE PROPOSALS FOR 
 

RECORD-KEEPING AND ACTUARIAL CONSULTING 
SERVICES FOR THE RETIREMENT PLAN,  

LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM AND 
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS UNDER GASB-45 (OPEB) 

 
 
DATE:  Wednesday, March 2, 2016 BIDS DUE:  Thursday, March 10, 2016 
 4:00 P.M. 
 
To Bidders: 
 

This Addendum is hereby made a part of the Contract Documents on which all bids will be 
based and is issued to correct and clarify the original documents. 
 

Please acknowledge receipt of this Addendum at the appropriate space on the Proposal 
Form.  This Addendum consists of four (4) pages and two (2) attachments. 
 
 NOTE:  All bidders must enter the County Administration Building through the front 
door, 100 West Washington Street entrance, and must use the elevator to access the 
Purchasing Department to submit their bid.  Alternate routes are now controlled by a door 
access system. 
 
ITEM NO. 1: Inquiry: Why is this work going out for bid at this time? 
 
 Response: The full term of the present 5-year contract (1 year with 4 additional 

consecutive option year renewals) is expiring June 30, 2016.   
 
 
ITEM NO. 2: Inquiry: How long has CBIZ been the actuary? 
 
 Response: Since 1999. 
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(NOTE:  The wording of all “Inquiries” submitted are displayed exactly as received.) 

 
 
ITEM NO. 3: Inquiry: Can you give us the CBIZ fees for each of the three plans over the last 12 

months? 
 
 Response: $45,272.75 combined.  Contract award was made as follows in 2011: 
    
 

 PART 1 
CBIZ Benefits and Insurance 

Services 
Cumberland, MD 

Item 
No. 

Annual Lump Sum Fees / 
Employee’s Retirement Plan 

of Washington County: 

Unit/Total 
Price 

1 Contract Year No. 1 $20,000.00 

2 Contract Year No. 2 $20,000.00 

3 Contract Year No. 3 $20,000.00 

4 Contract Year No. 4 $20,000.00 

5 Contract Year No. 5 $20,000.00 

 PART 2 

Item 
No. 

Annual Lump Sum Fees / 
Length of Service Award 

Program (LOSAP): 

Unit/Total 
Price 

6 Contract Year No. 1 $4,000.00 

7 Contract Year No. 2 $4,000.00 

8 Contract Year No. 3 $4,000.00 

9 Contract Year No. 4 $4,000.00 

10 Contract Year No. 5 $4,000.00 

TOTAL  
For Contract Years 1 through 5 

For Both Programs 
(Total of Item Nos. 1 - 10) 

$120,000.00 
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 Response: See the two (2) attachments to this Addendum.   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ITEM NO. 4: Inquiry: Can we get copies of the funding valuations for the pension and LOSAP 

plans (we assume these were separate reports from the GASB67 reports that came 
with the RFP). 

 
 Response  See the two (2) documents attached to this Addendum. 
 
 
ITEM NO. 5: Inquiry: Has there ever been an experience study done?  If so, can we get a copy? 
 
 Response:  No; N/A. 
 
 
ITEM NO. 6: Inquiry: Why are the mortality assumptions different between the Pension and 

OPEB valuations since they cover the same population? 
 
 Response: The mortality assumption for the OPEB valuation was adopted with the 

implementation of GASB 45 but the pension plan mortality was not updated.  In light 
of the recent Society of Actuaries mortality study releases, the County is evaluating 
the mortality assumption for both plans. 

 
 
ITEM NO. 7: Clarification:  Refer to RFP, Page 6, Section IV.I.  One (1) annual presentation to the 

County at a public meeting covering all plans is required and pricing is to be included 
in the price proposal.  Additional public meetings by the consultant, if required, shall 
be compensated as covered in Section VI.A.2, on Page 8 of the RFP document. 

 
 
ITEM NO. 8: Washington County implements GASB pronouncements before or by the required 

implementation date. 
  

NOTES:  

CBIZ Hourly Rates  
Senior Actuary/Consultant/Lawyer $250.00 - $350.00  
Actuary $175.00 - $250.00  
Staff Actuary $125.00 - $175.00  
Assistant Actuary $100.00 - $125.00  
Non-Professional Staff Included in above rates  
 
Billing Protocols - We will send an invoice to the County each calendar quarter for 
one quarter of the proposed "lump sum" fee.  For any work done outside the scope of 
this RFP, we will invoice as the work is completed. 
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ITEM NO. 9: As stated in the RFP, Page 3, Section III.C.5., “The price costs for OPEB services as 

outlined herein shall be included in the price portion of Part 1 of the Proposal Form.”  
Clarification:  Annual OPEB Valuation Reports shall be submitted to the County and 
the cost included in each Contract Year as part of the “Annual Lump Sum 
Fees/Employee’s Retirement Plan of Washington County” which is indicated as Part 
1 on the Proposal Form 

 
  BY AUTHORITY OF: 

 
Karen R. Luther, CPPO 
Director of Purchasing 
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